
 

AGENDA 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

City Council Chambers, 540 Civic Boulevard  

September 13, 2021 at 7:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Approve Agenda 

Approve Minutes 

1. Draft Minutes 7/12/21. Possible Vote to Approve Minutes from Previous Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting held July 12, 2021. 

Meeting Procedures 

Public Hearings 

2. REZN 21-012.  Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of An Application to 
Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Four Point Seven-Seven (4.77) Acres, Located 
at 503 North West Avenue from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to General 
Commercial (C-3) 

Other Business 

3. SUBD-PRE 21-005. Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application for a Preliminary 
Plat for Ashford Place, a Residential Subdivision Consisting of 42 Lots on Approximately Nine Point 
Three Two (9.32) Acres Located at 924 North Main Street. 

Citizen Participation 

Community Development Department Update 

Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
Individuals addressing the Commission are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name 
and address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 
attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 732-3101 at least three days prior to the 

scheduled meeting. All meetings are tape recorded for public viewing. 

1



P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  M e e t i n g ,  J u l y  1 2 ,  2 0 2 1

MINUTES 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

540 W Civic Blvd
July 12, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

PRESENT 
Commissioner Brandon Andrews 
Commissioner Erik Pedersen 
Commissioner Kevin Haun 
Commissioner Randy Phelps 
Commissioner Chris Crosby 
City Council Liaison Garry Wilson 

ABSENT 
Commissioner Ransom Ellis 
Commissioner Cynthia Hyder 

Approve Agenda 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Andrews, Commissioner Pedersen, Commissioner Haun, Commissioner 
Phelps, Commissioner Crosby 

Approve Minutes 

1. Approval of Draft Minutes from June 6, 2021

Voting Yea: Commissioner Andrews, Commissioner Pedersen, Commissioner Haun,
Commissioner Phelps, Commissioner Crosby

Meeting Procedures 

Public Hearings 

2. PDD 21-004.  Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application to
Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Ninety Two Point Eight-Five (92.85) Acres,
Located at 3456 South Farm Road 101 from Agricultural (AG) and General Commercial (C-2) to
Stone Creek Falls Planned Development District (PDD)

Speaking in Support: Sean Coatney 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Andrews, Commissioner Pedersen, Commissioner Haun, 
Commissioner Phelps, Commissioner Crosby 

3. REZN 21-011. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application
for a Rezone by S. Foreman Realty on behalf of ShoMe Fabrication of a parcel occupying 9.1
acres from General Commercial (C-2) to Heavy Manufacturing (M-2)

Speaking in Support: Derek Watson 

DRAFT

2

Item 1.



 3 | P a g e  
P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  M e e t i n g ,  J u l y  1 2 ,  2 0 2 1  

Voting Yea: Commissioner Andrews, Commissioner Pedersen, Commissioner Haun, 
Commissioner Phelps, Commissioner Crosby 
 

Other Business 

4. SUBD-PRE 21-004.  Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application for a Preliminary 
Plat for Olde Savannah Phase 3, a Residential Subdivision Consisting of Approximately Twenty-
Two Point Nine Five (22.95) Acres Located at the 6400 Block of S FR 89 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Andrews, Commissioner Pedersen, Commissioner Haun, 
Commissioner Phelps, Commissioner Crosby 
 

Citizen Participation 

Community Development Department Update 

Adjournment 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Andrews, Commissioner Pedersen, Commissioner Haun, Commissioner 
Phelps, Commissioner Crosby 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________    _________________________________ 

Karen Haynes, Planning Manager                        Ransom Ellis, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

3

Item 1.



 

REZN 21-012 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

 

Project/Issue Name: REZN 21-012.  Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval 

of An Application to Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Four 

Point Seven-Seven (4.77) Acres, Located at 503 North West Avenue from 

Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to General Commercial (C-3) 

Submitted By: Empire District Electric Company 

Presented By:   Karen Haynes, Planning Manager, BUILDS Department   

Date: September 13, 2021 

 

ISSUE IDENTIFICATION 

Empire District Electric Company has applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately (4.77) 

acres of property located at 503 North West Avenue from Medium Density Single-Family Residential 

(R1-M) to General Commercial (C-3). 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application is comprised of approximately (4.77) acres of land 

located at 503 North West Avenue from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to General 

Commercial (C-3).   Empire District Electric Company, operating as Liberty Utilities, intends to build a 

new building for their Republic crews; the building will house Liberty Utilities construction crews, work 

trucks and equipment, and staff.   

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the City’s Adopted Plans 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of commercial development through 

proactive Rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are described generally 

throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations to infrastructure 

capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

The 2021 Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan identifies Land Use Goals and Objectives relating to 

commercial development, including the following: 

 Goal:  Coordination with Infrastructure 

 Objective:  Support new development that is well connected to the existing community 

4

Item 2.



 

REZN 21-012 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

 

 Objective:  Promote development aligning with current adopted plans of the City; the 
intensity of uses should match the capacity of infrastructure to serve the use 

The general trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property has been the Rezoning and 
redevelopment of properties for commercial uses along the State Highway 174 corridor.   

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

The subject property is surrounded by City of Republic Medium Density Single-Family zoned properties 

to the north, south, east, and west.  Adjacent and nearby State Highway 174 frontage has been Rezoned 

in recent years to commercial zoned properties, consistent with the City’s Major Thoroughfare Plan 

identifying this corridor as a Primary Arterial with commercial development potential. 

The land uses permitted in the General Commercial (C-3) Zoning District relative to the intended use 

include heavy and civil engineering construction services.   

Capacity To Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:  The parcel is adjacent to a 6-inch waterline parallel to US Highway 

60 along the property’s frontage, which also runs north on West Avenue.   

The parcel will be served by one of two existing gravity sanitary sewer mains, located on North West 

Avenue and adjacent to their western property line; both gravity sewer lines run directly to the 

Wastewater Treatment Facility.  The City’s water system and Wastewater Treatment Facility currently 

have capacity to serve the intended use.   

Transportation:  A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required by MODOT due to the low volume of 

traffic generated by the proposed use.  MODOT will require the closing of the existing residential 

driveway on North West Avenue and will issue a Construction Permit for improvements to the existing 

driveway on State Highway 174.    

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does contain a small amount of Special Flood Hazard Area 

(SFHA/Floodplain) at the northwest corner of the property; no development is proposed in this area. 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel does not contain any identified sinkholes.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of development in the 

vicinity of the site, compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by 

5

Item 2.



 

REZN 21-012 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

 

municipal facilities.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony 

of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

 

6

Item 2.



7

Item 2.



8

Item 2.



 

SUBD-PRE 20-005 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

 

Project/Issue Name: SUBD-PRE 21-005.  Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an 

Application for a Preliminary Plat for Ashford Place, a Residential Subdivision 

Consisting of Approximately Nine point Three Two (9.32) Acres Located at 924 

N. Main S. 

Submitted By: Hamilton Contracting Inc 

Presented By:   Chris Tabor, Principal Planner, BUILDS Department  

Date: September 13, 2021 

 
ISSUE IDENTIFICATION 

Hamilton Contracting Inc has requested review and approval of a Preliminary Plat of Ashford Place, a 

subdivision of approximately nine point three two (9.32) acres, consisting of forty-two (42) residential 

lots zoned Zero Lot Line Residential (R1-Z), streets, and infrastructure.   

Conformity with Preliminary Plat Review Criteria:  Preliminary Plats are reviewed for their conformance 

with the following review criteria to ensure the development, in the proposed location: 

(1) Will not endanger the public health or safety; 

(2) Will not injure the value of adjoining property or abutting property; 

(3) Will be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, Transportation Plan, Zoning Code, 

Water System Master Plan, Wastewater System Facility Plan, or other plans officially 

adopted by the City Council; and  

(4) Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located 

Preliminary Plats are reviewed by the City Planner and the City Engineer in conformance with the 

requirements of Chapter 410 of Republic’s Municipal Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and all applicable 

City adopted codes and regulations.   

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The property subject to this Preliminary Plat Application is comprised of approximately nine point three 

two (9.32) acres of land located at the 924 North Main Street.  The property is zoned Zero Lot Line 

Residential (R1-Z).  All previously existing structures have been demolished. 

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of the application’s conformity with the Preliminary Plat 

Review Criteria identified above.   

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

9

Item 3.



 

SUBD-PRE 20-005 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

 

The referenced Preliminary Plat contains (42) Zero Lot Line Residential (R-1Z) lots with a minimum 

required lot size of (5,000) square feet and consists of streets, open space, utility easements, and 

detention areas.  The Preliminary Plat of Ashford Place contains lots with an average size of 7,279.9 

square feet a density of 4.51 lots/acre.  

Transportation Plan 

The Preliminary Plat proposes two new Local Street connections: Kloe Street and a small continuation of 

Hampton Avenue.  The remainder of Hampton, connecting the two sections, would be completed as 

future development progresses.  New public streets will be dedicated to the City during the Final 

Platting Process; deficient Right-of-Way (ROW) along North Main Street will be dedicated to the City 

during the Final Platting Process.   

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required of the Applicant. 

Water and Wastewater Master Plan 

The referenced parcel is not currently connected to municipal utilities, development of the property will 

require connection to the City’s water and sanitary sewer systems.  Development will require an 

extension of the existing eight (8) inch water main along the east side of Main Street from Sweeney 

Elementary to the northern edge of the new subdivision.  The looping of the water system, as typically 

required in subdivisions, is not feasible here and, therefore, is not being required.  However, the final 

system must provide a flow of at least 1,000 gallons per minute (gpm) to meet minimum requirements 

for adequate home use.  Fire regulations will require either that hydrants serving the property meet a 

flow of 1,500 gpm or that houses served by inadequate hydrants be sprinkled.   

Wastewater will gravity-feed north from the east property line through and an eight (8) in main to the 

Evergreen Lift Station and then on to the Wastewater Treatment Plant.   

Both the water and sewer system currently have the capacity to serve the potential development. 

Zoning Code 

The Preliminary Plat of Emerald Valley Phase 2 has been platted for the construction of forty single-

family lots, two community lots and associated infrastructure, including public streets and sidewalks, 

public water and sanitary sewer mains, and stormwater detention.   

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel does not contain any identified sinkholes. 

10

Item 3.



 

SUBD-PRE 20-005 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

 

Stormwater:  The Preliminary Plat contains a Stormwater Detention Area between lots 33 and 

34, designed to control the release of stormwater attributable from the development.    The Plat 

contains a conceptual layout of the Detention Area; the area will be designed to mitigate 

existing conditions to reduce the amount of post-development flows to less than pre-

development flows.  The Stormwater Detention Area’s outflow will flow onto adjacent property 

to the north of the property; a Stormwater Report will be reviewed by the TRT during 

Infrastructure Design review.  The Stormwater Detention Area and all open space/common area 

will be maintained by a Homeowner’s Association.   

Infrastructure Design:  The design of the streets, sidewalks, water and sanitary sewer systems, 

and stormwater detention will be reviewed and permitted during the Infrastructure Permitting 

Process. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff considers the proposed Preliminary Plat in general conformity with the requirements for 

Preliminary Plats and is recommending approval of the application.   

 

11

Item 3.



12

Item 3.



13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.


	Top
	Item 1.	Draft Minutes: 7/12/21
	July 12, 2021 Draft Minutes

	Item 2.	REZN 21-012: Liberty Rezone
	REZN 21-012 PZ Staff Report
	REZN 21-012 Zoning Map (reduced)
	REZN 21-012 Vicinity Map (reduced)

	Item 3.	SUBD-MNR 21-005: Preliminary Plat of Ashford Place
	SUBD-PRE 21-005 PZ Staff Report
	SUBD-PRE 21-005 Vicinity Map (reduced)
	SUBD-PRE 21-005 Zoning Map (reduced)
	Ashford Place - Preliminary Plat

	Bottom

